

Please note: This English version is a convenience translation – the German version shall prevail

Technical guidelines

## **DECLARATION OF COMPLETENESS**



## I. Document version history

CHANGE H	CHANGE HISTORY					
Date	Version	Change/update	Author			
25 March 2019	1.0	First version	Stiftung Zentrale Stelle Verpackungsregister			
3 May 2019	1.1	Screenshots of figures 2, 5 and 6 exchanged due to new releases, additions to chapter 6.3 (first paragraph)	Stiftung Zentrale Stelle Verpackungsregister			
7 February 2020	2.0	Updated following a new re- lease, addition on submission pursuant to the Verpackungsgesetz (as from the 2019 reference year)	Stiftung Zentrale Stelle Verpackungsregister			
8 March 2021	2.1	Updated to 9.1 and 9.3	Stiftung Zentrale Stelle Verpackungsregister			
20 January 2022	2.2	Chapter 6 ('Declaration of completeness submission by an authorised representa- tive') added	Stiftung Zentrale Stelle Verpackungsregister			
10 Novem- ber 2022	2.3	Updated with current screen- shots and images from the LUCID packaging register	Stiftung Zentrale Stelle Verpackungsregister			
28 Novem- ber 2023	2.4	Updated with current screen- shots and images from the LUCID packaging register	Stiftung Zentrale Stelle Verpackungsregister			
20 January 2025	2.5	Updated with current screen- shots and images from the LUCID packaging register an und 10.3 Information about signing documents with a QES	Stiftung Zentrale Stelle Verpackungsregister			



## Table of contents

1	Ge	eneral information on the declaration of completeness	4
2	Pr	ocess of generating a declaration of completeness in LUCID	4
3	Те	rminology	5
4	Inf	ormation to be recorded by the producer for the declaration of completeness	5
	4.1	Recording general data for the declaration of completeness	5
	4.2	Recording packaging subject to system participation	10
	4.3	Recording the volumes for sector-specific solutions	14
	4.4	Packaging: non-private final consumer (section 11 (2) no. 2 VerpackG)	16
	4.5	Submitting the declaration of completeness	18
	4.6	File declaration of completeness	21
	4.7	Correcting the declaration of completeness after generating the producer declaration	24
5	De	claration of completeness submission by an appointed third party	25
	5.1	Manage declaration of completeness	25
	5.2	Create/edit a producer's DoC	28
	5.3	Overview of 'appointed third party' declaration of completeness dialogue	28
6	De	claration of completeness submission by an authorised representative	29
	6.1	Manage producers	30
	6.2	Filing a declaration of completeness	31
7	Up	loading audit documents	32
	7.1	Navigating to the declaration of completeness for auditors screen	32
	7.2	Navigating to the declaration of completeness for producers / appointed third parties s 34	creen
	7.3	Uploading the producer declaration	36
	7.4	Uploading the audit confirmation	37
	7.5	Uploading the audit report	38
	7.6	Submitting the audit result	38
	7.7	Resetting after the audit result has been submitted	40
8	Do	ocument requirements	41
9	Pu	blication in the public register	43
1	0	Qualified electronic signature	43
	10.1	General information on the qualified electronic signature (QES)	43
	10.2	Auditing the QES in LUCID	43
	10.3	Information about signing documents with a QES	44
1	1	Table of figures	45



## **1** General information on the declaration of completeness

These technical guidelines describe the process for submitting the declaration of completeness (DoC) under section 11<sup>1</sup> VerpackG. The entire process is looked at from a technical perspective so that the document is targeted towards both producers, appointed third parties and DoC auditors within the meaning of section 11 (1), section 27 (1), (2) VerpackG.

The audit of the DoC content is based on the relevant audit guidelines, which can also be accessed on the Packaging Register's website.

Pursuant to section 11 (1) VerpackG, a producer is required to file a DoC with the Stiftung Zentrale Stelle Verpackungsregister (Foundation Central Agency Packaging Register – ZSVR) if the thresholds set out in section 11 (4) VerpackG are reached (glass > = 80,000 kg, PPC > = 50,000 kg or Ferrous metals + aluminium + plastics + beverage cartons + other composites (lightweight packaging) in total > = 30,000 kg). Where the volume thresholds have been exceeded, the DoC must be submitted by 15 May of each year, covering all the packaging subject to system participation placed on the German market for the first time in the previous year. If a producer files a DoC because they were ordered to do so by the ZSVR or a responsible state authority (section 11 (4) VerpackG), the deadline will be set out in the respective order. If the filing is voluntary, there is no set deadline for submission.

The DoC can be submitted in LUCID in German and English.

## 2 Process of generating a declaration of completeness in LUCID

Filing an audited DoC in LUCID comprises the following steps:

- Step 1. Recording general data for the declaration of completeness (chapter 4.1)
- Step 2. Recording volumes (chapter 4.2 to chapter 4.4)
- Step 3a. DoC submission by producer (chapter 4.5 and chapter 4.6)
- Step 3b. Step 3b. DoC submission by appointed third party (chapter 5)
- Step 3c. Step 3b. DoC submission by authorised representative (chapter 6)
- Step 4. Uploading the producer declaration (chapter 7.3)
- Step 5. Uploading the audit confirmation (chapter 7.4)
- Step 6. Step 6. Uploading the audit report (chapter 7.5)
- Step 7. Submitting the audit result (chapter 7.6)

Steps 1 to 3c must be carried out by the producer / authorised representative / appointed third party. Steps 4 to 7 can either be done by the producer / authorised representative / appointed third party or by the auditor.

Chapter 7.7 contains information about correcting audit results.

The chapter 7 sub-chapters contain information about the requirements for uploading documents, as well as information about DoC publication in the public register, together with information about qualified electronic signatures (QES).

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>1</sup> Unless indicated otherwise, section references to an Act are to the Verpackungsgesetz (Packaging Act – VerpackG).

Last updated: 20 January 2025



In accordance with section 33 VerpackG, the DoC entries can also be filed by an appointed thirdparty for a producer. A dedicated module is contained in LUCID for this purpose (cf. chapter 5).

## 3 Terminology

The declaration of completeness (hereinafter referred to as 'DoC') must be audited and confirmed by a registered expert pursuant to section 27 (1) in conjunction with section 3 (15) VerpackG, or by a registered auditor, tax advisor or sworn accountant pursuant to section 27 (2) VerpackG. This circle of auditors (hereinafter referred to as 'auditors') is registered via the ZSVR's internet portal, LU-CID.

To file a DoC, registration pursuant to section 9 VerpackG is required for producers, and registration pursuant to section 27 VerpackG is required for auditors. A DoC is always filed in reference to an individual registration number. A consolidated/aggregated submission for multiple registration numbers is not permitted. Where a producer tasks an **appointed third party** with the filing requirement, the third party must apply for their own login with the ZSVR.<sup>2</sup>

The user must ensure that the data and documents filed in connection with the DoC are complete and up-to-date, and that the basis of the underlying information can be fully verified and is fully documented. The guidelines for auditing DoCs provide the auditor with a framework for their activities beyond the legal and professional regulatory requirements. A user who submits a DoC in LUCID may be a producer, authorised representative or appointed third party, in accordance with the process described in chapter 2.

The volumes that need to be reported in relation to the DoC and the corresponding documentation can only be filed manually. Details on the process for filing data in LUCID and on the technical requirements for submitting the declaration of completeness to the ZSVR will be described further in the following sub-chapters.

Pursuant to section 11 (3) VerpackG, the auditor within the meaning of section 11 (1) VerpackG must provide the DoC confirmation with a qualified electronic signature (cf. also chapter 10 'Qualified electronic signature'). The validity of the signed documents will be verified.

## 4 Information to be recorded by the producer for the declaration of completeness

#### 4.1 Recording general data for the declaration of completeness

The general data for the DoC must absolutely be recorded by the producer / authorised representative / appointed third party. Access is gained via a personalised login. Producers receive their login as part of registration, while authorised representatives and appointed third parties receive a login by generating one in LUCID. After a producer logs onto LUCID,<sup>3</sup> the dashboard below is displayed.

Stiftung Zentrale Stelle Verpackungsregister | Foundation headquarters: City of Osnabrück | Chair: Gunda Rachut 5 Foundation authorities: Amt für regionale Landesentwicklung Weser-Ems (Weser-Ems Office for Regional State Development) | Foundation register no.: 16 (085)

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>2</sup> Requirement pursuant to section 11 (3) VerpackG.

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>3</sup> The appointed third party's dashboard is contained in chapter 5. The dashboard for authorised representatives is contained in chapter 6.

Last updated: 20 January 2025



Welcome to your LUCID Dashboard.			
Registration number Company name Registration status: Last volume report: Type of last volume report:	Hersteller Registered 17.08.2022 Intra-year volume report	Last login: Registration date: Last profile update:	31.08.2022 17.03.2022 01.09.2022
Edit master data, change login, close registration	Edit details about your company's packaging	Edit brand names	Submit data report
Edit declaration of completeness	Download documents		

Figure 1 – LUCID, producer dashboard, overview of all tiles

Click on the 'Edit' button in the 'Declaration of completeness' tile. Then the selection below will open.

Declaration of completeness		
You can submit a new declaration of completeness (DoC) here, or continue one you have air( (gaper, paperboard and cardboard) >= $50,000$ kg or the total of the other materials named in (Central Agency) or the responsible state authority has the power to order that a declaration	ady started. You can amend existing declarations of completeness. If the de minimis thresho section 16 (2) VerpackG > = 30,000 kg), producers are required to file a declaration of compl of completeness be filed by a certain date. Producers can also voluntarily submit their declar	id set out in section 11 (4) VerpackG (Packaging Act) is exceeded (glass > = 80,000 kg, PPC eteness by 15 May of each year. Regardless of the de minimis threshold, the Zentrale Stelle ation of completeness here at any time.
Declaration of completeness according to VerpackG		
Filing of the declaration of completeness according to VerpackG (from reference year 20	9)	
Edit >		
Declaration of completeness according to VerpackV	Submission of DoC by appointed third party	
Filing of the declaration of completeness according to VerpackV (up to reference year 2018)	Edit submission of DoC by a appointed third party	
Edit >	Edit >	

Figure 2 – Selection of the DoC type

For reference years from 2012 up to and including 2018, the DoC must be filed according to the Verpackungsverordnung (Packaging Ordinance – VerpackV) ('Declaration of completeness according to VerpackV'). From the 2019 reference year onwards, the DoC must be filed according to the Verpackungsgesetz (Packaging Act) ('Declaration of completeness according to VerpackG'). Click on the 'Edit' button to select the type. This will prompt the following screen to open:



Declaration of completer	ess according t	o VerpackG	
You can submit a new declaration of completeness (DoC) according to VerpackG (from reference year 2019) here (click on "add declaration"), or continue one you have already started (click on "edit"). You can amend existing declarations of completeness (click on "correct"). A declaration of completeness can only ever be submitted for the previous calendar year (reference year). It is not possible to file one during the current calendar year. The information must be reviewed and verified by a registered auditor. Only then is the declaration of completeness filed in accordance with § 11 (1) VerpackG. You can use LUCID to find registered auditors in the Zentrale Stelle's (Central Agency's) register of auditors. The Zentrale Stelle is under statutory obligation to publish a list of producers who have filed a declaration of completeness; this list is published in the public register on the Zentrale Stelle's (Stelle's website. Publication starts on the 16 May for the previous reference year. The list is updated on a regular basis.			
Reference year T	Status <b>T</b>	DoC reason <b>Y</b>	Actions
Reference year <b>T</b> 2021	Status <b>Y</b> Started	DoC reason T Duty triggered by exceeding thresholds	Actions Edit
Reference year T 2021	Status <b>T</b> Started	DoC reason T Duty triggered by exceeding thresholds	Actions Edit 1 - 1 of 1 items

Figure 3 – DoC tile, overview of DoCs

If an existing DoC needs to be edited, click on the appropriate 'Edit' button.

To submit a new DoC, click on the 'Add declaration' button. The screen 'General declaration of completeness information' displayed below will then open.

Г		
	General declaration of completeness information	
	To start, edit or correct a declaration of completeness, please begin by entering the general information reques function has been selected) are already filled in.	ted here. Your registration number, company name and the reference year (except when the "add declaration"
	General declaration of completeness information	
	Registration number *	Name (company name) *
		Hersteller
	Reference year * 0	
	2021	
	DoC reason * 0	
	· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·	
	Type of packaging * <b>0</b>	
	Packaging	
	Auditor * 0	
	Declaration of consent (optional): I hereby consent to the registered auditor I have indicated here being	
	supplied with the data and documents to audit my declaration of completeness for the selected reference year directly via LUCID.	
L		

*Figure 4 – Setting up a new DoC ('Add declaration')* 

The 'Registration number' and 'Name (company name)' fields are automatically filled in with the producer's master data and cannot be changed.

In the 'Reference year' field, select the year for which the DoC is being submitted. It is not possible to file a DoC if the reference year is ongoing. If the DoC reason is 'Duty triggered by exceeding thresholds', the filing occurs in the following year for the reference year immediately prior. It is possible to file a DoC retrospectively back to 2012 (only via the 'Declaration of completeness according to VerpackV' tile).



A DoC can be submitted with a variety of 'DoC [references/reason]' for a reference year, but only one DoC can be filed per reference year and DoC [reference/reason]. This would be necessary, for example, if an audit of a DoC that was submitted under the DoC [reference/reason] of 'Duty triggered by exceeding thresholds' or 'Voluntary' reveals inconsistencies that result in an order from the ZSVR or state enforcement authorities. In these cases, a completely independent and therefore new DoC needs to be submitted.

In the 'DoC reason' field, the reason for the DoC must be recorded. As a general rule, the selection '*Duty triggered by exceeding thresholds*' should be selected if the producer has exceeded the thresholds defined in section 11 (4) VerpackG during the reference year indicated (glass >= 80,000 kg, PPC >= 50,000 kg or the sum of the other materials named in section 16 (2) VerpackG) >= 30,000 kg). Where the volume thresholds have been exceeded, the DoC must be submitted by 15 May of each year, covering all the packaging subject to system participation placed on the German market for the first time in the previous year.

If the reason for the DoC is 'Requirement from the ZSVR' or 'Requirement from the responsible state authority', the ZSVR or the state authority will set out the deadline for submission on an individual basis in an administrative act. If the reason 'Other/optional' is selected, no deadline can be given. The provision under section 11 (1) VerpackG can be used as a reference guide.

When 'Requirement from the responsible state authority' is selected as the [reference/reason], the fields displayed in the screenshot below, 'File reference of the responsible state authority' and 'Enter the responsible state authority' must be filled in.

DoC reason * 🗑	
Order from the responsible state authority	
File reference of the responsible state authority *	Enter the responsible state authority * 😝
Notice of arder 9	
select file	
The maximum allowed file size is 10.5 MB.	

Figure 5 – Fields to be updated when DoC [reference/reason] is 'Requirement from the responsible state authority'

If a DoC is filed due to an order by the ZSVR, the DoC reason 'Order from the Stiftung Zentrale Stelle Verpackungsregister' and the ZSVR reference are already preset after clicking on the 'Add declaration' button (cf. 'Figure 3 – DoC tile, overview of DoCs').

DoC reference * 🕜	Zentrale Stelle (Central Agency) reference * 🕜
Order from the Stiftung Zentrale Stelle Verpackungsregister	AZ12345

Figure 6 – Fields when DoC reason is 'Order from the Stiftung Zentrale Stelle Verpackungsregister'

The field 'Type of packaging' is preset to the entry 'Packaging' and cannot be changed.

In the field 'Auditor', the name of the expert/auditor whom the producer has instructed to perform the audit and confirm the DoC must be entered. The expert/auditor must be registered pursuant to section 27 VerpackG in the ZSVR's register of auditors, in LUCID. After the fourth character of the auditor's name or the fourth digit of the auditor's ID is entered, the registered auditor will be suggested. It is not possible to search for an auditor organisation / company name here (it is possible to do so in the Packaging Register LUCID's public register).

The DoC must be audited and confirmed by one of the auditors registered with the ZSVR (section 27 (1), (2) VerpackG). The producer / authorised representative / appointed third party can decide directly in LUCID that the responsible auditor will be provided with the producer declaration directly within LUCID. This can be done by checking the 'Declaration of consent' box. This decision can be



changed at any time (including while the filing process is ongoing). The producer / authorised representative / appointed third party and – where the producer / authorised representative / appointed third party has provided consent – the auditor as well, can use a link to download the producer declaration created in LUCID after volumes have been entered. Here it should be noted that it can take a few minutes to generate this document for technical reasons. In addition, producers / authorised representatives / appointed third parties, including auditors where consent has been provided, will receive an e-mail with a corresponding link. If no declaration of consent has been provided, the producer / authorised representative / appointed third party must provide the auditor with the producer declaration outside of LUCID.

After the data in the 'General declaration of completeness information' screen have been saved, the 'Declaration of completeness' screen will then open. From this point, the rest of the entries can be made. Data entry is structured in a modular way, i.e. you can limit your filing of reports to those DoC modules that are relevant for the user. Modules not relevant for an individual case do not need to be edited.

Declaration of completeness		
To create your declaration of completeness according to VerpackG (from reference year 2019), please enter the r Company name:	relevant dala. To conclude, you can check and submit is under "Declaration of completeness submission". Click , Registration number:	Explanation" to learn more about a particular point. Reference year:
Hersteller	CELICITE (0507)	2021
General declaration of completeness information		
Edit general information		
Edit > Explanation #		
Packaging subject to system participation	Sector-specific solution volumes	Packaging – non-private final consumer
Packaging volumes subject to system participation per system operator	Packaging volumes taken back per sector specific solution	Packaging according to section 11 (2) sentence 1 No. 2 VerpackG
tet ) Explanation »	Ede > Coptanation >	for ) Explanation »
Declaration of completeness submission		
Overview of the information and generation of the producer's declaration for submission and subsequent re	eview and verification by a registered auditor and final deposit of the declaration of completeness	
Ede ) Crpianuion »		

Figure 7 – Tile overview (DoC)

The individual modules will now be described in detail below.



#### 4.2 Recording packaging subject to system participation

Declaration of completeness		
To create your declaration of completeness according to VerpackG (from reference year 2019), please enter the	relevant data. To conclude, you can check and submit is under "Declaration of completeness submission". Click	Explanation" to learn more about a particular point,
Company name: Herstaller	Registration number:	Reference year: 2021
General declaration of completeness information		
Edit general information		
Coptanution >		
Packaging subject to system participation	Sector-specific solution volumes	Packaging - non-private final consumer
Packaging volumes subject to system participation per system operator	Packaging volumes taken back per sector-specific solution	Packaging according to section 11 (2) sentence 1 No. 2 VerpackG
Eet ) Crplanulion >	Edit >) Explanation >	Edit v Explanation >
Declaration of completeness submission		
Overview of the information and generation of the producer's declaration for submission and subsequent	review and verification by a registered auditor and final deposit of the declaration of completeness.	
fdt :) Esplanution #		

Figure 8 – Process for entering packaging subject to system participation & sector-specific solution volumes (DoC)

Packaging subject to system participation placed on the German market during the reference year can be entered via the 'Packaging subject to system participation' tile for each system operator. If contractual agreements with sector-specific solutions have been entered into and volumes have been collected accordingly, these volumes must be recorded using the the 'Sector-specific solution volumes' tile.

Care should be taken that any reports for a reference year up through the year 2018 must be filed on the basis of the material types in the Verpackungsverordnung (Packaging Ordinance). Reports for reference years from 2019 onwards are filed on the basis of the material types named in the Verpackungsgesetz (Packaging Act). This is directly preset on the systems side depending on the selected year and cannot be changed by the user.



Packaging subject to sys	stem participa	tion			
Please enter the material types and volumes of all of The volumes are to be stated including any deduction	the packaging subject to system is made due to damage or unsa	n participation placed on the Gen leability in accordance with sect	rman market for the first time ion 7 (3) VerpackG. These de	in the past reference year that have undergone system participation with one or more system operator(s). Juction volumes are to be entered separately via the tile deduction volumes and are automatically deducted.	
Company name:			Registration nu	mberi	Reference year: 2022
Enter volumes for the d	eclaration of c	ompleteness			
Volumes of material types (in kg with three decimal p	laces, tons must be converted t	o kg. List can be moved with scr	oll bar.)		
	0	Further system operator	Total (kg)		
System operator		Select 🔹			
Glass	0.000 kg		0.000		
Paper, paperboard and cardboard 0	86,521.000 kg		86,521.000		
Ferrous metals 0	0.000 kg		0.000		
Aluminium 0	2,356.000 kg		2,356.000		
Beverage carton packaging ()	0.000 kg		0.000		
Other composite packaging ()	0.000 kg		0.000		
Plastics	39,562.000 kg		39,562.000		
Other materials 0	0.000 kg		0.000		
Total (kg)	128,439.000		128,439.000		
System confirmation of volumes	BESCHEINIGUNG Mengen.pdf File was uploaded successfully. ×				
Cancel				2	Review >

Figure 9 – Volumes input form (packaging subject to system participation)

Volume reports can only be filed when they make reference to system operators who had approval during the reference year. The relevant system operator can be selected via the drop-down menu. For each volume report, a volume confirmation issued by the system on the volumes participating in the system per material type pursuant to section 7 (1) VerpackG must be uploaded in PDF format (only for DoCs pursuant to the Verpackungsgesetz). One document can be uploaded for each system. The volume reports must then be entered per material type, in kilogrammes to the third decimal point. Reports should be entered without thousands separators. To assist users, the mass entries are auto-populated with 0.000 kg<sup>4</sup> and can be edited.

After the current column has been completed, a new column opens automatically right next to it. If a contractual agreement existed for multiple system operators for the relevant reference year, this can be recorded directly in this input screen.

By clicking on the symbol **1** at the beginning of the line, the entries in this line can be deleted. Using the navigation bar below, the displayed area can be shifted to the right so that all columns can be viewed and updated.

Stiftung Zentrale Stelle Verpackungsregister | Foundation headquarters: City of Osnabrück | Chair: Gunda Rachut 11 Foundation authorities: Amt für regionale Landesentwicklung Weser-Ems (Weser-Ems Office for Regional State Development) | Foundation register no.: 16 (085)

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>4</sup> If the German version has been selected, the 'full stop' will be displayed as a comma.

Last updated: 20 January 2025



Where deduction volumes were declared, these must be entered separately under the 'Deduction volumes' tile (only for DoCs from the 2019 reference year onwards). Deduction volumes reduce the values entered as 'Packaging subject to system participation'.



Click on the 'Edit' button in the 'Deduction volumes' tile. Then the input form below will open.

Deduction volumes				
Here, you can enter deduction volumes according to the requirements of Section 16 (5) VerpackG. If you v individual case.	section 7 (3) VerpackG, provide vant to specify the deduction vo	d that you have not placed pack lumes, documentation of the tal	aging on the market due to c ke-back and recycling of the k	famage or unsaleability and have taken back the packaging and recycled it in accord corresponding packaging volumes according to section 16 (5) VerpackG is needed fo
Company name:		Regist	ration number:	Re
				•
Enter deduction volume	es for the decl	aration of com	pleteness	
Volumes of material types (in kg with three decimal p	places, tons must be converted	to kg. List can be moved with scr	oll bar.)	
		Further system operator	Total deduction	
Sustam onerator		G Select		
System operator	0.000 km	Select	0.000	
	0.000 Ng		0.000	
Paper, paperboard and cardooard	2,310.000 kg		2,310.000	
Ferrous metals	0.000 kg		0.000	
	0.000 kg		0.000	
Beverage carton packaging	0.000 kg		0.000	
Other composite packaging 0	0.000 kg		0.000	
Plastics	0.000 kg		0.000	
Other materials 0	0.000 kg		0.000	
Total deduction	2,310.000		2,310.000	
I confirm the take back and recycling in accorda	nce with section 7 (3) in conjunc	tion with section 16 (5) Verpack(	5 and that I have the corresp	onding recycling documentation available. *
_				
Cancel				

Figure 10 – Deduction volumes

After all of the entries have been made, click the 'Review' button. This also applies if all the input lines are deleted. The window below will open.



ease check an	d save your o	details:			
olume per Syste System operator	Total (kg)	Dedu volur	uction mes	Tot vol	al after deduction of the deduction umes
Denana	80.000		0.000		80.00
olume per mate	rial type				
Material type	To (kg	tal g)	Deduction volumes		Total after deduction of the deduction volumes
Glass	1	4.000	0.0	000	14.00
PPC		6.000	0.0	000	6.00
Ferrous metals	2	0.000	0.0	000	20.00
Aluminium		0.000	0.(	000	0.00
Beverage carto packaging	n 4	0.000	0.0	000	40.00
Other composit packaging	e	0.000	0.0	000	0.00
Plastics		0.000	0.0	000	0.00
Other materials		0.000	0.0	000	0.00

Figure 11 – Overview of review result of the previous entries

This window displays a summary of the entries. If it is necessary to make any corrections, the user can return to the 'Packaging subject to system participation' input screen by clicking on the 'Edit data' button. To save the data in LUCID, click on the 'Save' button if the review result is correct. After the 'Save' button is clicked, the window below will open and the process can then be closed by click-ing on the 'OK' button.

Volumes per system operator
Volumes saved successfully.
ок

*Figure 12 – Confirmation dialogue (saving message)* 

Before the saving process is finalised, consistency checks are carried out in LUCID. If any irregularities are detected, they will be displayed as in the example in figure 10. The plausibility checks include, for example, checking very large or very small volumes, zero volumes or any other deviations, e.g., a 5% difference vis-à-vis the data saved in LUCID for the previous year.



• Data reporting contains very large input.

Figure 13 – Review result (warnings and messages)

In the event that it is later necessary to correct the volumes entered, you can make changes afterwards. After the 'Edit' button is clicked in the 'Packaging subject to system participation' tile, the volumes currently saved are displayed. They can be overwritten and changed accordingly.

#### 4.3 Recording the volumes for sector-specific solutions

If contractual agreements with sector-specific solution providers have been entered into, the relevant volumes must be entered using the 'Sector-specific solution volumes' tile.

Declaration of completeness To create your destaration of completeness according to VerpackG (from reference year 2019), please enter the	refevant data. To conclude, you can theck and submit it under "Declaration of complements submission". Click J	Oplansion" to team more about a particular point.
Company name: Hersteller	Beglin ation number:	Reference year 2021
General declaration of completeness information		
Eds general information		
Ede : > Explanation >		
Packaging subject to system participation	Sector-specific solution volumes	Packaging - non-private final consumer
Packaging volumes subject to system participation per system operator	Packaging volumes taken back per sector specific solution	Packaging according to section 11 (2) sentence 1 No. 2 VerpackG
lide : Caplanuison 9	Coplanation >	Coplanation >
Declaration of completeness submission		
Overview of the information and generation of the producer's declaration for submission and subsequent re	niew and verification by a registered auditor and final deposit of the declaration of completeness	
(de ) Ceptanaion #		

Figure 14 – Process for entering sector-specific solution volumes (DoC)

As can be seen in the screenshot below, the functionalities are nearly identical to those in the 'Packaging subject to system participation' tile.



Volumes sector-specific	solution							
Please enter the total packaging per material type that	was collected by one or more se	ctor-specific solution(s) according to sectio	n 8 VerpackG (Packaging Act) below.					
Enter volumes for the de	eclaration of co	mpleteness						
Volumes of material types (in kg with three decimal pl	aces, tons must be converted to k	g. List can be moved with scroll bar.)						
sector-specific solution	▲	_	\$					
Glass	0.000 kg							
Paper, paperboard and cardboard 0	0.000 kg							
Ferrous metals 0	0.000 kg							
Aluminium 0	0.000 kg							
Beverage carton packaging 0	0.000 kg							
Other composite packaging <b>O</b>	0.000 kg							
Plastics	0.000 kg							
Total (kg)	0.000 kg							
< Cancel					Review >			

Figure 15 – Volumes input screen (sector-specific solution)

The only difference to the process described in chapter 4.2 Recording packaging subject to system participation is that no selection menu is shown in the sector-specific solution field; instead, the name of the corresponding sector-specific solution is shown for selection after the first four letters of the name have been entered. It should be noted that only those sector-specific solutions are shown in the selection menu where notification of their activities as sector-specific solution for the reference year has been given as legally required.



4.4	Packaging:	non-private final	consumer	(section 11 (	(2) no	. 2 VerpackG)

Declaration of completeness		
To create your declaration of completeness according to VerpackG (from reference year 2019), please enter the	relevant data. To conclude, you can check and submit it under "Declaration of completeness submission". Click,	Explanation* to learn more about a particular point.
Company name: Herstaller	Registration numbers	Reference year 2021
General declaration of completeness information		
Edit general information		
Ger ) Captanuison »		
Packaging subject to system participation	Sector-specific solution volumes	Packaging - non-private final consumer
Packaging volumes subject to system participation per system operator	Packaging volumes taken back per sector specific solution	Packaging according to section 11 (2) sensence 1 No. 2 VerpackG
fat - Explanation >	Edit > Explanation >	Re - Ciptantion »
Declaration of completeness submission		
Overview of the information and generation of the producer's declaration for submission and subsequent r	eview and verification by a registered auditor and final deposit of the declaration of completeness.	
Coptanuition a		

Figure 16 – Process for entering non-private final consumer volumes (DoC)

Producers and distributors of retail packaging that does not accumulate with (private) final consumers are required to collect – free of charge – used, completely emptied retail packaging at the point where actual handover occurred, or in the immediate vicinity thereof, and transfer the packaging for recovery. These volumes must be entered under the 'Packaging – non-private final consumer' tile.



Packaging – non-private	final consume	r
Please enter the volumes in kilograms with three deci requirements with regard to sales packaging and grou	mal places of the packaging acco ped packaging pursuant to secti	rding to section 11 Abs. 2 S. 1 Nr. 2 VerpackG, which accrued at non-private final consumers. You must confirm the fulfillment of the recovery on 15 (1) sentence 1 no. 2 VerpackG. Please enter the totals.
Company name:		Registration number: Reference ye 20
Enter volumes for the device of material types (in kg with three decimal pl	eclaration of co	mpleteness kg. List can be moved with scroll bar.)
Glass	0.000 kg	
Paper, paperboard and cardboard 0	0.000 kg	
Ferrous metals 0	0.000 kg	
Aluminium 0	0.000 kg	
Beverage carton packaging 0	0.000 kg	
Other composite packaging 0	0.000 kg	
Plastics	0.000 kg	
Other materials 0	0.000 kg	
Total (kg)	0.000	
I hereby confirm compliance with the legal recover	ery requirements regarding sales	packaging and grouped packaging in accordance with section 15 VerpackG. *
Cancel		Review

Figure 17 – Input screen: Packaging: non-private final consumer

As can be seen in the Figure 17 – Input screen: Packaging: non-private final consumer' above, the sums of the volumes are recorded here. The notes set out above apply to the recording of volumes. For these volumes, however, it is necessary to confirm transfer for recovery pursuant to section 15 (1) no. 2 VerpackG, and that complete documentation of recovery is available. This confirmation is provided by checking the corresponding checkbox ('I hereby confirm fulfilment of the legal recovery requirements regarding retail and grouped packaging pursuant to section 15 VerpackG'). After confirmation, it is necessary to file the method of recovery. Here it is necessary to indicate the relevant form of recovery by checking the corresponding box. It is possible to select 'self', 'via a third party' or 'self and via a third party'. In the event that volumes pursuant to section 15 (1) no. 2 VerpackG have been filed, these are mandatory entries. It is not possible to save the process without entering this further information.



#### 4.5 Submitting the declaration of completeness

Declaration of completeness		
To create your declaration of completeness according to VerpackG (from reference year 2019), please enser the	relevant data. To conclude, you can check and submit it under "Declaration of completeness submission". Click,	Explanation" to learn more about a particular point,
Company name: Hersteller	Registration number:	Reference year: 2021
General declaration of completeness information		
Edit general information		
(Ge ) Captanution »		
Packaging subject to system participation	Sector-specific solution volumes	Packaging - non-private final consumer
Packaging volumes subject to system participation per system operator	Packaging volumes taken back per sector-specific solution	Packaging according to section 11 (2) sentence 1 No. 2 VerpackG
fat : Explanation >	Edit : Explanation >	Rec - Coptantion >
Declaration of completeness submission		
Overview of the information and generation of the producer's declaration for submission and subsequent	review and verification by a registered auditor and final deposit of the declaration of completeness	
Get ) Crystansion a		

Figure 18 – Process for DoC submission

After the 'Declaration of completeness submission' tile is clicked on to conclude the process, an overview of the entries is displayed.



#### Deposit declaration of completeness

Overview of the information and generation of the producer's declaration for submission and subsequent review and verification by a registered auditor and final deposit of the declaration of completeness.

Company name:				Registration numbe DE42986374547	er: 99			Reference year: 2023
Summary								
General declaration Registration number DE4298637454799 Reference year ① 2023	n of completeness inf	ormation		<b>Nam</b> Com	ie (company name) &Pany			Edit
DoC reason  Duty triggered by exceeding Type of packaging Packaging Auditor DE6585193098802	thresholds			Deck supp refer	aration of consent (optional): Jlied with the data and docum rence year directly via LUCID.	hereby cor ents to aud	nsent to the regisi	tered auditor I have indicated here being of completeness for the selected
System operator vo	plumes	on 7 (1) VerpackG (Packa	aging Act) p	er system operator; vo	blumes of material types (in kg	with three	decimal places, to	Edit
moved with scroll bar.) System operator Glas	s Paper, paperboard and cardboard	Ferrous Al metals	uminium	Beverage carton	Other composite	Plastics	Other materials	System confirmation of volumes

0.000 59,230.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000	
	BESCHEINIGUNG
Total (kg)         0.000         59,230.000         0.000         0.000         0.000         0.000         0.000	

System operator	Glass	Paper, paperboard and cardboard	Ferrous metals	Aluminium	Beverage carton packaging	Other composite packaging	Plastics	Other materials
	0.000	59,230.000	0.000	0.000	0.000	0.000	0.000	0.000
Total (kg)	0.000	59,230.000	0.000	0.000	0.000	0.000	0.000	0.000

Volumes sector-specific solution No sector-specific solution volumes declared.	Edit
Packaging – non-private final consumer No packaging volumes specified which do not accrue at private final consumers (section 11 (2) sentence 1 no. 2 VerpackG).	Edit
	Generate producer's declaration

Figure 19 – Summary, filing and submission of the DoC

If any corrections need to be made to the data, click on the 'Back' button to return to the 'Declaration of completeness' screen.





If all the data has been recorded accurately, then click on the 'Generate producer declaration' button. If values have not been entered into every module, a window will open with the message that no values have been recorded in a specific module. This provides a reminder function for producers who have overlooked a module that is relevant for them. However, the process can be continued if no data is entered in that module. Example: You filed volumes in the 'Packaging subject to system participation' module. After clicking on the 'Generate producer declaration' button, a message appears that no sector-specific solution has been recorded and a message that no volumes under section 11 (2) no. 2 VerpackG have been filed. The window below will then open:

Generate producer's declaration	
By clicking on "Generate producer's declaration" you co declaration. You will be provided with a download link w mail.	onclude the generation of the producer's within LUCID and will receive a notification by e-
Cancel	Generate producer's declaration

Figure 20 – Complete DoC filing confirmation dialogue

Then click on the 'Generate producer declaration' button and the window below will open.



Figure 21 – DoC filing successful dialogue

After the process for filing the DoC set out above has been completed, LUCID will send an e-mail containing the text below and a download link to the producer and, where applicable, the authorised representative and the appointed third party; the subject line of this e-mail will read 'LUCID: Declaration of completeness provided' (cf. example below). If the declaration of consent has been provided in the 'General declaration of completeness information' for LUCID to provide the auditor with the data and documents, LUCID will also send an e-mail with a download to the auditor.



Declaration of completeness filed
Dear Mr
Your declaration of completeness were filed in the LUCID register database of the Zentrale Stelle Verpackungsregister on 03.04.2020. You can view it here:
overview page
or at http
Where you have consented to your registered auditor pursuant to section 27 (2) VerpackG (Packaging Act) receiving your data and documents directly via the LUCID Packaging Register, your auditor will receive a copy of this e-mail.
Yours sincerely,
Please note: This English version is a convenience translation; the German version is binding.

Figure 22 – DoC confirmation e-mail with download link

If the e-mail is not in your inbox, please check your spam folder. After the download link contained in the e-mail has been clicked, the user will be asked to enter their login details and then brought to the 'File declaration of completeness' input screen.

Independently of the e-mail transmission, you can download the producer declaration approximately 15 minutes after filing it. To do so, select the 'View' button in the overview of the declarations of completeness.

Declaration of completeness according to VerpackG			
You can submit a new declaration of completeness (DoC) according to VerpackG (from reference year 2019) here (click on "add declaration"), or continue one you have already started (click on "edit"). You can amend existing declarations of completeness (click on "correct"). A declaration of completeness can only ever be submitted for the previous calendar year (reference year). It is not possible to file one during the current calendar year. The information must be reviewed and verified by a registered auditor. Only then is the declaration of completeness filed in accordance with § 11 (1) VerpackG. You can use LUCID to find registered auditors in the Zentrale Stelle's (Central Agency's) register of auditors. The Zentrale Stelle is under statutory obligation to publish a list of producers who have filed a declaration of completeness; this list is published in the public register on the Zentrale Stelle's website. Publication starts on the 16 May for the previous reference year. The list is updated on a regular basis.			
Reference year <b>T</b>	Status <b>T</b>	DoC reason	Actions
2021	Started	Duty triggered by exceeding thresholds	Edit
2020	Started	Duty triggered by exceeding thresholds	Edit
2021	Producer's declaration generated	Other/optional	View Correct
I         I			
Add declaration			

Figure 23 – View DoC

The remaining process is described in the following chapter.

#### 4.6 File declaration of completeness

An overview of the recorded data is displayed. For technical reasons, it may take a few minutes before the button appears.



Dashboard      Declaration of completeness      Declaration	n of completeness according to VerpackG $ ightarrow \equiv$ Deposit declaration of completeness	
Deposit declaration of co Overview of the information and generation of the producer's declaration	Ompleteness ation for submission and subsequent review and verification by a registered auditor and final depr	osit of the declaration of completeness.
Company name:	Registration number:	Reference year: 2019
Deposit declaration of completeness		
Download producer declaration	ded. The generation can take several minutes for technical reasons. As soon as it is available, you v	vill receive a notification by e-mail.
Summary		
General declaration of completeness information Registration number	Name (company name)	
Reference year 🚱 2019		

Figure 24 – Filing a declaration of completeness (data not yet generated)

If you update your browser page, a 'Download' button will be displayed after the data is generated, as shown in Figure 25. Clicking the button will generate a PDF of the producer declaration

Deposit declaration of completeness			
Overview of the information and generation of the producer's declaration for submission and subsequent review and verification by a registered auditor and final deposit of the declaration of completeness.			
Company name:	Registration number: DE4298637454799	Reference year: 2022	
Summary			
Download producer declaration			
The producer declaration is now ready for download.			
Download	D <sub>2</sub>		
Registration number DE4298637454799	Name (company name)		
Reference year 3 2022			
DoC reason ① Duty triggered by exceeding thresholds Type of packaging Packaging			
Auditor  DE6585193098802	Declaration of consent (optional): I hereby consent to the registered auditor I have indicated supplied with the data and documents to audit my declaration of completeness for the selec reference year directly via LUCID. Yes	here being ted	

Figure 25 – Downloading a producer declaration (data generated)

This producer declaration in PDF format sealed by the ZSVR can be sent to the auditor manually outside of LUCID. If the producer / authorised representative / appointed third party has given their

Last updated: 20 January 2025

Stiftung Zentrale Stelle Verpackungsregister | Foundation headquarters: City of Osnabrück | Chair: Gunda Rachut 22 Foundation authorities: Amt für regionale Landesentwicklung Weser-Ems (Weser-Ems Office for Regional State Development) | Foundation register no.: 16 (085)



consent to sharing data with the auditor, the data and documents will be available to the auditor in LUCID. In this case, the auditor can view and download the producer declaration directly. Naturally the producer can always view and/or download their data, even if the DoC was filed by an authorised representative or appointed third party.

For security, the document bears the qualified electronic signature (QES) of the ZSVR, as shown by the ZSVR's seal in the screenshot below. This document must not be changed, neither in content nor form.

Herstellererklärung
Die Daten und Dokumente, die im Rahmen der Vollständigkeitserklärung hinterlegt werden, sind richtig, vollständig, aktuell und die Grundlagen der zugrunde liegenden Informationen lückenlos nachprüfbar und dokumentiert. Die Anforderungen des VerpackG an die Systembeteiligung von Verpackungen sowie an die Rücknahme und Verwertung der hier deklarierten sonstigen Verpackungen (§ 8 VerpackG, § 15 VerpackG, § 7 Absatz 3 VerpackG) wurden umfassend erfüllt. Dies wird mit der Erzeugung dieses unveränderlichen Dokumentes seitens des Herstellers bestätigt.
Diese Herstellererklärung, als Teil der Vollständigkeitserklärung, wurde aufgrund der im Verpackungsregister LUCID durch den Hersteller bzw. vom Hersteller beauftragten Dritten eingegebenen Daten generiert. Diese Herstellererklärung darf inhaltlich nicht verändert werden. Sie ist vom Prüfer mit einer qualifizierten elektronischen Signatur zu versehen und muss nebst den zugehörigen Dokumenten im Verpackungsregister LUCID hinterlegt werden.
Unterschrift ZSVR
Producer declaration
The details and documents filed as part of the declaration of completeness are correct, complete, and up-to-date. The basis of the underlying information can be fully verified and is documented. The requirements laid out in the Verpackungsgesetz to participate in a system for packaging and regarding returns and recovery of other packaging declared here (section 8 VerpackG, section 15 VerpackG, section 7 (3) VerpackG) have been fully met. <b>This is hereby confirmed by the producer upon creation of this document, which cannot be changed.</b>
This producer declaration, which is part of the declaration of completeness, was generated using the data entered in the LUCID Packaging Register by the producer and/or third party appointed by the producer. The content of this producer declaration must not be changed. It must be given a qualified electronic signature by an auditor and filed in the LUCID Packaging Register, together with the corresponding documents.

Figure 26 – Producer declaration with the ZSVR's QES

By navigating downwards in the 'File declaration of completeness' screen using the navigation bar, the tiles below become visible.

Producer declaration	Audit confirmation	Audit report	Audit report
Producer declaration with the seal of the Zentrale Stelle and the qualified electronic signature of the auditor	Audit confirmation as PDF with the qualified electronic signature of the auditor	Audit report according to the guideline as PDF (optionally with the qualified electronic signature of the auditor)	without/with qualifications/denied
Upload 🔅	Upload >	Upload >	Audit Result
No file uploaded.	No file uploaded.	No file uploaded.	Confirm >

Figure 27 – Overview of the tiles to file PDF documents

The subsequent uploading of audit documents in LUCID can either be done by the producer / authorised representative / appointed third party or by the auditor, and is set out beginning in chapter 7.3 Uploading the producer declaration.



#### 4.7 Correcting the declaration of completeness after generating the producer declaration

The producer / authorised representative / appointed third party is able to update the data at any point before the producer declaration is generated.

DoCs that are filed because the thresholds were exceeded can be corrected up to 15 May of the year (the latest possible filing date pursuant to section 11 (1) VerpackG). Correcting the producer declaration after 15 May is technically possible, but doing so will mean the deadline has not been met.

It is still possible to make corrections before the applicable deadline, even if audit documents have already been filed (cf. 7 'Uploading audit documents'). To correct the data, the entire filing process, including auditing and confirmation, must be repeated by an auditor registered with the ZSVR.

If a declaration of completeness that has already been filed needs to be corrected, select the 'Correct' button in the overview of the filed declarations of completeness.

Reference year T	Status <b>T</b>	DoC reason T	Actions
2021	Started	Duty triggered by exceeding thresholds	Edit
2020	Started	Duty triggered by exceeding thresholds	Edit
2021	Producer's declaration generated	Other/optional	View Correct
H         I         Image: H         Image: H<			

Figure 28 – Correcting a DoC

The user will first receive the following message. If they confirm this message by clicking on the 'OK' button, the user will be directed to the declaration of completeness view (cf. 'Figure 7 – Tile overview (DoC)'). The data already filed is preset in the input screens and can be supplemented or corrected. The producer declaration then has to be generated anew (cf. 4.6 'File declaration of completeness').

Correct producer's declaration
Do you really want to withdraw and correct the declaration of completeness? Attention: The submission of the declaration of completeness will be cancelled by the correction and all already uploaded verification documents will be deleted. It is then considered as not submitted. If the declaration of completeness is to be submitted again after changes have been made, the producer's declaration must be regenerated, signed and uploaded. The other inspection documents must also be uploaded again and the inspection result must be set.
Cancel Withdraw and correct

Figure 29 – Correct producer declaration warning message

The last filed DoC is applicable. Data previously filed in LUCID are historical.

Last updated: 20 January 2025

*Stiftung Zentrale Stelle Verpackungsregister* | Foundation headquarters: City of Osnabrück | Chair: Gunda Rachut 24 Foundation authorities: Amt für regionale Landesentwicklung Weser-Ems (Weser-Ems Office for Regional State Development) | Foundation register no.: 16 (085)



## **5** Declaration of completeness submission by an appointed third party

Producers have the option of having an appointed third party submit the DoC. To do so, the appointed third party must register in LUCID. Once the registration has been completed and has been approved by the ZSVR, the appointed third party can sign into LUCID. By clicking on the 'Edit' button of the corresponding tile, the appointed third party firstly accesses the declarations of completeness sub-menu, and after further selection, then accesses an overview for managing the producers' DoC.

LUCID Dashboard			
Welcome to your LUCID Dashboard.			
ThirdParty-ID Registration status:	Active	Last login: Registration date: Last master data update:	18.08.2022 07.03.2022 07.03.2022
Edit master data	Declarations of completeness		
Change master data, change login, close registration	Edit declarations of completeness		
Edit >	Edit >		

Figure 30 – LUCID, dashboard of an appointed third party, all tiles

Declarations of completeness		
Below you can find the inquiries and accepted declarations of completeness (	DoC) of those producers who have asked you to submit their declaration of complete	ness.
Declarations of completeness according to VerpackV	Declarations of completeness according to VerpackG	
Edit the declarations of completeness according to VerpackV (up to reference year 2018).	Edit the declarations of completeness according to VerpackG (from reference year 2019).	
Edit >	Edit 义	

Figure 31 – Appointed third party: declarations of completeness

#### 5.1 Manage declaration of completeness

The 'Manage declaration of completeness' sub-menu view can be updated by clicking on the 'Requests overview' button.



Declarations of completeness according to VerpackG							
After clicking on "request overview", you can display a list of producers who have requested that you submit a declaration of completeness for them. The table below contains a list of producers who have requested that you agree to making a submission for them as an appointed third party and whose requests you have approved.							
Request Overview							
Reference year       T       Calendar year       T       Contracting producer       T       Authorised representative       T       Status       T       DoC reason       T       Actions         H       Image: Contracting producer       Image: Contracting producer							

Figure 32 – LUCID DoC, managing declarations of completeness

Clicking on the 'Request overview' button in the 'Manage declaration of completeness' view in the sub-menu will open the 'Manage requests' view. This displays all of the requests relating to the appointed third party's relevant registration number (status: 'New'). The request status, date and reference year are also visible.

Approving or rejecting a DoC request can be done via the relevant sub-menu, using the 'Details' button.

#### Manage requests

By clicking on "Details", you can view the information of the producer. Calendar year Requested on Accepted on Declined on T Status Producer T Authorised representative Actions Y 2021 2022 29.04.2022 Details New 2022 Cancelled 18.03.2022 18.03.2022 2021 29.04.2022 Details н ч ь н 1 - 2 of 2 items

Figure 33 – LUCID DoC, manage requests

The following screenshot shows the producer's request details. There are two buttons in the lower section of the dialogue that can be used to either reject or accept requests. The producer related to the DoC will be shown in the LUCID portal whether the appointed third party has rejected or accepted the request.



Request details							
Here you can view an overview of the data of the producer who requested that you submit its declaration of completeness as an appointed third party.							
Request details							
Producer data							
company name 🛛							
E-mail address 0							
first name 0 Max	surname 0 Mustermann						
Additional producer data							
Germany							
Postcode •	city 🔮 Regebogen	street 0 Regenbogenstraße	house number <b>1</b> 24				
Request data							
Reference year 0 2021							
calendar year 0 2022	Requested on () 29.04.2022	status 🗿 New					
Reject ×			Accept 🗸				

Figure 34 – LUCID DoC, request details

After confirming the request in the 'Request details' view, the user is returned to the 'Manage requests' menu. The changes in status will be visible in this menu.

#### Manage requests

By clicking on "Details", you can view the information of the producer.

Reference year 🔻	Calendar year 🔻	Status 🔭 🕇	Requested on	Accepted on	Declined on	Producer 🔻	Authorised representative	Actions
2021	2022	Accepted	29.04.2022	01.09.2022				Details
2021	2022	Cancelled	18.03.2022	18.03.2022	29.04.2022			Details
1 - 2 of 2 items								

Figure 35 – LUCID DoC, manage requests (updated status)

By clicking on 'Manage declaration of completeness' shown at the top of the menu, users can navigate back to the DoCs screen.



#### 5.2 Create/edit a producer's DoC

Clicking on the 'Start' button in the 'Manage declaration of completeness' menu begins the DoC submission process.

20	22												
An	fragenübersicht												
	Bezugsjahr	T	Kalenderjahr	T	Beauftragender Hersteller	T	Beauftragter Bevollmächtigter	T	Status	T	VE-Grund	T	Aktionen
•	Beauftragender	Herstel	leri voluno										
	2016		2022		veitins				Ausstehen	d		-	Starten
H	H     I     H       Anzeigen der Elemente 1 - 1 von 1												
Ne	u erstellen												

Figure 36 – Manage declaration of completeness, start actions

If a DoC has already been started, the 'Edit' button will be displayed in place of the 'Start' button. By clicking on this button, the DoC can be edited further.

Declarations	Declarations of completeness according to VerpackG								
After clicking on "request ove requested that you agree to r	After clicking on "request overview", you can display a list of producers who have requested that you submit a declaration of completeness for them. The table below contains a list of producers who have requested that you submit a declaration of completeness for them. The table below contains a list of producers who have requested that you submit a declaration of completeness for them. The table below contains a list of producers who have requested that you submit a declaration of completeness for them. The table below contains a list of producers who have requested that you agree to making a submission for them as an appointed third party and whose requests you have approved.								
2022 Request Overview									
Reference year ▼ ▼ Contracting producer	Calendar year 🔻	Contracting producer <b>T</b>	Authorised representative	Status <b>T</b>	DoC reason	Actions			
2021	2022	Ventino		Being corrected	Other/optional	Edit			
2021	2022	Vertins		Started	Duty triggered by exceeding thresholds	Edit			
1 - 2 of 2 items									
Create new									

Figure 37 – Manage declaration of completeness, edit actions

Clicking on the relevant button will open the 'Declaration of completeness' menu.

#### 5.3 Overview of 'appointed third party' declaration of completeness dialogue

This menu is set up in the same way as the producer menu. The functions of the 'Declaration of completeness' menu are described in chapter 4.2: Recording 'Packaging subject to system participation'.



🔀 Dashboard 👂 👪 Declaration of completeness 👂 👪 Declaration of completeness according to VerpackG 👂 🖀 Declaration of completeness								
Declaration of completeness To create your declaration of completeness according to VerpackG (from reference year 2019), please enter the relevant data. To conclude, you can check and submit it under "Declaration of completeness submission". Click "Explanation" to learn more about a particular point.								
Company name:	Registration number:	Reference year: 2019						
General declaration of completeness information Edit general information Explanation Edit >								
Packaging subject to system participation Packaging volumes subject to system participation per system operator Explanation	Sector-specific solution volumes Packaging volumes taken back per sector-specific solution Explanation	Packaging – non-private final consumer Packaging according to section 11 (2) sentence 1 No. 2 VerpackG Explanation Edit >						
Declaration of completeness submission Overview of the information and generation of the producer's declaration for submission and subsequent review and verification by a registered auditor and final deposit of the declaration of completeness Explanation Edit >								

Figure 38 – Overview of tiles for appointed third party DoCs

## 6 Declaration of completeness submission by an authorised representative

Producers without a branch in Germany can appoint an authorised representative located in Germany to fulfil their obligations under the Verpackungsgesetz for them. This includes the submission of a declaration of completeness in the producer's name.

For an appointment to be valid, a written contractual agreement must be concluded in German. Furthermore, the authorised representative is required to create a login for the LUCID Packaging Register.

LUCID dashboard			
Welcome to your LUCID dashboard.			
Authorised representative's ID:	06031737304	Last login:	04.11.2022
Company name:	NI SCIE	Date of login creation:	17.03.2022
Login status:	Active	Last master data update:	14.10.2022
Change master data, terminate login	Manage authorisations Manage authorisations Edit		

Figure 39 – Authorised representative's dashboard following login generation

Last updated: 20 January 2025

Stiftung Zentrale Stelle Verpackungsregister | Foundation headquarters: City of Osnabrück | Chair: Gunda Rachut 29 Foundation authorities: Amt für regionale Landesentwicklung Weser-Ems (Weser-Ems Office for Regional State Development) | Foundation register no.: 16 (085)



#### 6.1 Manage producers

LUCID dashboard			
Welcome to your LUCID dashboard.			
Authorised representative's ID: Company name: Login status:	DE8517515392304 Kirsche Active	Last login: Date of login creation: Last master data update:	04.11.2022 17.03.2022 14.10.2022
Change master data, terminate login	Manage authorisations Manage authorisations		
Edit >	Edit >		

Figure 40 – 'Manage producers' tile

Once the login for an authorised representative has been created, the producer located outside of Germany can appoint the authorised representative to fulfil the producer's obligations under the Verpackungsgesetz. This appointment can be done while registering as a producer, but it can also be done for existing producer registrations. Once the authorised representative has accepted the appointment, the authorised representative can access the authorising producer's dashboard by clicking on the 'Manage producers' tile.

Produc Here you can s	Producer requests for authorisation Here you can see a list of requests from producers who have named you as their authorised representative in LUCID.							
Status 🔻	Registration number <b>T</b>	Producer <b>T</b>	Date requested <b>T</b>	Date accepted 🛛 🕈	Date rejected/withdrawn/closed	Actions		
Accepted	0		10.11.2022	10.11.2022		Details Producer dashboard Close		
Closed			14.10.2022	14.10.2022	20.10.2022			
Closed	024201311313003		08.09.2022	08.09.2022	14.10.2022			
1 - 3 of 3 items								

Figure 41 – Producer dashboard access for authorised representatives



LUCID Dashboard			
Welcome to your LUCID Dashboard.			
Registration number Company name Registration status: Last volume report: Type of last volume report:	Schoworade Registered 01.04.2022 Intra-year volume report	Last login: Registration date: Last profile update:	21.10.2022 07.03.2022 21.10.2022
Data report	Declaration of completeness		
Submit data report	Edit declaration of completeness		

Figure 42 – Authorised representative's view of the producer dashboard

#### 6.2 Filing a declaration of completeness

If there is an active authorisation, i.e. the status of the authorisation is shown to be 'Accepted' or 'In process', only the authorised representative can file a DoC for the producer. Producers can then only view the DoC, but cannot make changes or file a DoC themselves.

Desidentia			Local Local de	4440.000	2			
Registration number			Last login:	14.10.202	2			
Company name	Schokolade		Registration date:	07.03.202	2			
Registration status:	Registered		Last profile update:	07.03.202	2			
Last volume report:	01.04.2022							
Type of last volume report:	Intra-year volume report							
Declaration of completeness according to VerpackG (from reference year 2019) here (click on "add declaration"), or continue one you have already started (click on "edit"). You can amend existing declarations of completeness (lick on "correct"). A declaration of completeness can only ever be submitted for the previous calendar year (reference year). It is not possible to file one during the current calendar year. The information must be reviewed and verified by a registered auditor. Only then is the declaration of completeness filed in accordance with \$ 11 (1) VerpackG. You can use LUCID to find registered auditors in the Zentrale Stelle's (Central Agency's) register of auditors. The Zentrale Stelle is under statutory obligation to publish a list of producers who have filed a declaration of completeness; this list is published in the public register on the Zentrale Stelle's website. Publication starts on the 16 May for the previous reference year. The list is updated on a regular basis.								
Reference year <b>T</b>	Status	▼ Do	oC reason	T	Actions			
2021	2021 Producer's declaration generated Duty triggered by exceeding thresholds View Correct							
1 - 1 of 1 items								
Add declaration								

Figure 43 – DoC options for authorised representatives



Declaration of completeness according to VerpackG									
You can submit a new declaration of completeness (DoC) according to VerpackG (from reference year 2019) here (click on "add declaration"), or continue one you have already started (click on "edit"). You can amend existing declarations of completeness (click on "correct"). A declaration of completeness can only ever be submitted for the previous calendar year (reference year). It is not possible to file one during the current calendar year. The information must be reviewed and verified by a registered auditor. Only then is the declaration of completeness filed in accordance with § 11 (1) VerpackG. You can use LUCID to find registered auditors in the Zentrale Stelle's (Central Agency's) register of auditors. The Zentrale Stelle is under statutory obligation to publish a list of producers who have filed a declaration of completeness; this list is published in the public register on the Zentrale Stelle's website. Publication starts on the 16 May for the previous reference year. The list is updated on a regular basis.									
Reference year 🛛 🔻 🔻	Status T	DoC reason T	Actions						
2021 Producer's declaration generated Duty triggered by exceeding thresholds View									
H         ▲         1         ▶         N           1 - 1 of 1 items         1         1         1         1									

Figure 44 – DoC options for producers with an active authorisation

The remaining process for DoC filing by an authorised representative is identical with the DoC filing process for domestic producers and producers located abroad who do not have an authorised representative (cf. p. 17 et seqq.).

Declaration of completeness								
To create your declaration of completeness according to VerpackG (from reference year 2019), please enter the relevant data. To conclude, you can check and submit it under "Declaration of completeness submission". Click								
Company name:	Registration number:	Reference year: 2021						
General declaration of completeness information								
Edit general information	Edit general information							
Edit > Explanation >	Edit > Explanation >							
Packaging subject to system participation	Sector-specific solution volumes	Packaging – non-private final consumer						
Packaging volumes subject to system participation per system operator	Packaging volumes taken back per sector-specific solution	Packaging according to section 11 (2) sentence 1 No. 2 VerpackG						
Edit > Explanation >	Edit > Explanation >	Edit >						

Figure 45 – DoC filing overview

## 7 Uploading audit documents

#### 7.1 Navigating to the declaration of completeness for auditors screen

If the auditor uses the download link in the e-mail sent to them, the 'Review of completeness summary' will be loaded directly after login.



If the auditor does not use the link, they can click on the 'Edit' button shown in the 'Declarations of completeness' tile in the dashboard displayed immediately following logging onto LUCID.

Auditor-ID	-DE0113061113773	Last login:	08.09.2022
Registration status:	Registered	Last master data update:	07.03.2022
Change master data, close registration	View producer declarations, file audit results	Last master data upoate: Documents Download documents Download >	08.09.2022
Edit >	Edit >	Download >	

Figure 46 – LUCID dashboard (auditor view)

This brings the auditor to the 'Declarations of completeness' overview. Clicking on the 'Edit' button in the respective tile brings the user to the 'Declaration of completeness according to VerpackG' or to the 'Declaration of completeness according to VerpackV' overview.

Declarations of completeness	
Here you can view the declarations of completeness (DoC) of those producers that specified	you as their registered auditor und submit audit results.
Declarations of completeness according to VerpackV	Declarations of completeness according to VerpackG
Edit the declarations of completeness according to VerpackV (up to reference year 2018).	Edit the declarations of completeness according to VerpackG (from reference year 2019)
Edit >	Edit

Declarations of completeness according to VerpackG										
Reference year	T	Producer 7		Authorised Representative	Ţ	Status 🔻	DoC reason	T	Actions	
2021 Schokolade Producer's declaration generated Duty triggered by exceeding thresholds View										
I         I										

*Figure 47 – DoC status overview* 

In the overview shown above, only those DoCs are displayed to the auditor which the producer / authorised representative / appointed third party has indicated as being the responsible auditor, and for which the producer / authorised representative / appointed third party has completed the filing by generating the producer declaration (cf. 4.5 'Declaration of completeness submission')

Last updated: 20 January 2025

*Stiftung Zentrale Stelle Verpackungsregister* | Foundation headquarters: City of Osnabrück | Chair: Gunda Rachut 33 Foundation authorities: Amt für regionale Landesentwicklung Weser-Ems (Weser-Ems Office for Regional State Development) | Foundation register no.: 16 (085)



Clicking on the 'View' button opens the summary of the declaration of completeness. Using the navigation bar to navigate downwards shows the tiles below, which can be used to upload audit documents. The process is described starting in chapter 7.3 Uploading the producer declaration.

Producer declaration	Audit confirmation	Audit report	Information about the audit
Producer declaration with the seal of the Zentrale Stelle and the qualified electronic signature of the auditor	Audit confirmation as PDF with the qualified electronic signature of the auditor	Audit report according to the guideline as PDF (optionally with the qualified electronic signature of the auditor)	result without/with qualifications/denied
Upload >	Upload >	Upload >	Audit Result
No file uploaded.	No file uploaded.	No file uploaded.	Confirm >

Figure 48 – Overview of the tiles to submit PDF documents

# 7.2 Navigating to the declaration of completeness for producers / appointed third parties screen

If the audit result is supposed to be uploaded by the producer instead of the auditor, the following process should be followed:

After signing in, the dashboard is shown. Click on the 'Edit' button in the 'Declaration of completeness' tile.

LUCID Dashboard			
Herzlich willkommen in Ihrem LUCID Dashboard.			
Registrierungsnummer: Unternehmensname Registrierungsstatus: Letzte Datenmeldung: Art der letzten Datenmeldung:	DE2106421098075 Hersteller Registriert 17.08.2022 Unterjährige Mengenmeldung	Letzter Login: Registrierungsdatum: Letzte Stammdatenaktualisierung:	20.10.2022 17.03.2022 07.10.2022
Stammdaten Stammdaten ändern, Login übertragen, Registrierung beenden	Angaben zu den Verpackungen Angaben zu den Verpackungen ihres Unternehmens bearbeiten	Markennamen Markennamen bearbeiten Bearbeiten	Datenmeldung Datenmeldung abgeben Bearbeiten
Vollständigkeitserklärung	Dokumente		
Vollständigkeitserklärung bearbeiten Bearbeiten >	Registrierungsbescheide (Verwaltungsakte) herunterladen Herunterladen >		

Figure 49 – LUCID dashboard (producer), declaration of completeness

This brings the user to the 'Declarations of completeness' overview. Clicking on the 'Edit' button in the respective tile brings the user to the 'Declaration of completeness according to VerpackG' or to the 'Declaration of completeness according to VerpackV' overview.

Last updated: 20 January 2025

*Stiftung Zentrale Stelle Verpackungsregister* | Foundation headquarters: City of Osnabrück | Chair: Gunda Rachut 34 Foundation authorities: Amt für regionale Landesentwicklung Weser-Ems (Weser-Ems Office for Regional State Development) | Foundation register no.: 16 (085)



Declaration of completeness								
You can submit a new declaration of completeness (DoC) here, or continue one you have already started. You can amend existing declarations of completeness. If the de minimis threshold set out in section 11 (4) VerpackG (Packaging Act) is exceeded (glass > = 80.000 kg, PPC (paper, paperboard and cardboard) > = 50.000 kg or the total of the other materials named in section 16 (2) VerpackG > = 30.000 kg), producers are required to file a declaration of completeness by 15 May of each year. Regardless of the de minimis threshold, the Zentrale Stelle (Central Agency) or the responsible state authority has the power to order that a declaration of completeness be filed by a certain date. Producers can also voluntarily submit their declaration of completeness here at any time.								
Declaration of completeness according to VerpackG	Declaration of completeness according to VerpackG							
Filing of the declaration of completeness according to VerpackG (from reference yea	Filing of the declaration of completeness according to VerpackG (from reference year 2019)							
Edit >								
Declaration of completeness according to VerpackV	Submission of DoC by appointed third party							
Filing of the declaration of completeness according to VerpackV (up to reference year 2018)								
Edit >	Edit							

Figure 50 – Selection of the DoC type (producer)

🚯 Dashboard 🕨 👪 D	eclarat	ion of completeness 🗲 ដ Declaration of	comple	eteness according to VerpackG			
Declaration of completeness (DoC) according to VerpackG (from reference year 2019) here (click on "add declaration"), or continue one you have already started (click on "edit"). You can amend existing declarations of completeness (click on "correct"). A declaration of completeness can only ever be submitted for the previous calendar year (reference year). It is not possible to file one during the current calendar year. The information must be reviewed and verified by a registered auditor. Only then is the declaration of completeness filed in accordance with § 11 (1) VerpackG. You can use LUCID to find registered auditors in the Zentrale Stelle's Central Agency's) register of auditors. The Zentrale Stelle's website. Publication starts on the 16 May for the previous reference year. The list is updated on a regular basis.							
							Add declaration
Reference year	Ŧ	Status	T	DoC reason	Ŧ	Actions	Add declaration
Reference year	Ŧ	Status Being corrected	Ŧ	DoC reason Duty triggered by exceeding thresholds	Ŧ	Actions Edit	Add declaration
Reference year 2019 2019	T	Status Being corrected Producer's declaration generated	T	DoC reason Duty triggered by exceeding thresholds Other/optional	Ŧ	Actions Edit View	Add declaration

Figure 51 – Declarations of completeness, edit

The user can then scroll down on the input screen that opens and complete the remaining steps, which are described in the following chapters.



#### 7.3 Uploading the producer declaration

Producer declaration	Audit confirmation	Audit report	Audit report
Producer declaration with the seal of the Zentrale Stelle and the qualified electronic signature of the auditor	Audit confirmation as PDF with the qualified electronic signature of the auditor	Audit report according to the guideline as PDF (optionally with the qualified electronic signature of the auditor)	without/with qualifications/denied
Upload >	Upload (>)	Upload >	Audit Result
No file uploaded.	No file uploaded.	No file uploaded.	Confirm >

Figure 52 – Submitting the signed producer declaration

By using the 'Producer declaration' tile shown in the screenshot above, the document signed with a QES by the ZSVR and the auditor can be uploaded. Please note that only a document that has not been changed following the download can be uploaded. This applies in particular to amendments made by adding comments, or changes to the file format. Uploading a file that has been changed in form or contact will result in an error message. For information on the qualified electronic signature, cf. chapter 10 'Qualified electronic signature'.

Clicking on the 'Upload' button in the 'Producer declaration' tile opens a window. There the user can select the location of the document to be uploaded and click on the 'Upload files' button in LUCID to upload.

Upload producer declaration		-	×
Select file			
PDF 312.08 KB			×
Clear	Upload files		
The maximum allowed file size is 50 MB.			

Figure 53 – Producer declaration upload

Once the document has been successfully uploaded, it will be displayed in the 'Producer declaration' tile. If the document has not been correctly signed, the error message below will appear.





Figure 54 – Producer declaration upload (incl. possible error messages)

Producer declaration	Audit confirmation	Audit report	Audit report
Producer declaration with the seal of the Zentrale Stelle and the qualified electronic signature of the auditor	Audit confirmation as PDF with the qualified electronic signature of the auditor	Audit report according to the guideline as PDF (optionally with the qualified electronic signature of the auditor)	without/with qualifications/denied
	Upload > No file uploaded.	Upload > No file uploaded.	Audit Result
Download >			Confirm >

*Figure 55 – Notification after successful file upload* 

If the document has been successfully uploaded, the file name of the document saved in LUCID is visible. This includes the date, producer registration number, a technical ID and the original name of the file. By clicking on the 'Download' button, the document can be downloaded.

#### 7.4 Uploading the audit confirmation

This tile can be used to upload the audit confirmation bearing the auditor's qualified electronic signature. The name of the uploaded document will be displayed in the 'Audit confirmation' tile. The document can be downloaded by clicking on the 'Download' button.





Figure 56 – Submitting the signed audit confirmation

#### 7.5 Uploading the audit report

This tile can be used to upload the audit report. Adding a qualified electronic signature (QES) to the report is optional. The name of the uploaded document is shown in the audit report tile. The document can be downloaded by clicking on the 'Download' button.

Producer declaration	Audit confirmation	Audit report	Audit report
Producer declaration with the seal of the Zentrale Stelle and the qualified electronic signature of the auditor	Audit confirmation as PDF with the qualified electronic signature of the auditor	Audit report according to the guideline as PDF (optionally with the qualified electronic signature of the auditor)	without/with qualifications/denied
Upload >	Upload >	Upload >	Audit Result
Download >	Download >	Download >	Confirm >

Figure 57 – Submitting the (signed) audit report

#### 7.6 Submitting the audit result

Producer declaration	Audit confirmation	Audit report	Audit report
Producer declaration with the seal of the Zentrale Stelle and the qualified electronic signature of the auditor	Audit confirmation as PDF with the qualified electronic signature of the auditor	Audit report according to the guideline as PDF (optionally with the qualified electronic signature of the auditor)	without/with qualifications/denied
Upload >	Upload >	Upload >	Audit Result
Download >	Download »	Download >	Confirm >

Figure 58 – Entering the audit result



The confirmation when entering the audit result means the DoC is finally submitted. Before the confirmation can be given, it must be indicated in the 'Audit result' field whether the conclusion was 'unqualified' or 'qualified', or whether the auditor declined to confirm the DoC. This selection must (!) correspond to the audit result in the audit confirmation.

Only once all three documents have been successfully filed, the information about the audit result has been entered and the 'Confirm' button has been pressed, and the confirmation has not be declined for technical or substantive reasons, is the DoC deemed fully filed. As part of the technical filing process, the producer's documents are saved in the ZSVR e-file. In addition, producers and, where applicable, auditors / authorised representatives / appointed third parties receive a notification email that the DoC has been fully filed.

Even if the auditor has declined to issue a confirmation for technical or substantive reasons, the audit documents can be uploaded in LUCID and they will also be added to the ZSVR e-file.

The user will receive a confirmation directly in LUCID via the following notification window.

Audit of declaration of completeness	
The review of the declaration of completeness was successfully completed.	
	Ok

Figure 59 – Confirmation of successful DoC submission

Name	Description
Outstanding	The DoC submission process has not yet been started. It is 'outstanding' be- cause of the DoC obligation.
Started	The user has started the DoC (which has been saved at section 1 at a mini- mum).
Being corrected	A DoC that has been filed or audited is being edited again.
Producer decla- ration generated	The user has saved all of the sections completely, i.e. in addition to data en- try, all the necessary documents have been filed.
Being audited	The auditor is in the process of performing the audit and has uploaded at least one document successfully.
Audited: unquali- fied	The auditor has successfully uploaded all of the documents and the producer will be included in the publicly accessible DoC list for the relevant reference year after 15 May.
Audited: with qualification	The auditor has successfully uploaded all of the documents and the producer will be included in the publicly accessible DoC list for the relevant reference year after 15 May.
Audited: denied	The auditor has successfully uploaded all the documents. There will be no inclusion in the publicly accessible DoC list.

Last updated: 20 January 2025

Stiftung Zentrale Stelle Verpackungsregister | Foundation headquarters: City of Osnabrück | Chair: Gunda Rachut 39 Foundation authorities: Amt für regionale Landesentwicklung Weser-Ems (Weser-Ems Office for Regional State Development) | Foundation register no.: 16 (085)



Name	Description
Invalid	This status is set manually by ZSVR employees if the ZSVR determines dur- ing an audit that the DoC is incorrect or incomplete. If this is the case, the producer will no longer be included in the publicly accessible DoC list the next time the database is updated.

Figure 60 – DoC status

Clicking on the 'OK' button will bring users to their LUCID dashboard.

#### 7.7 Resetting after the audit result has been submitted

Users are able to reset the DoC after the audit result has been submitted, taking into account statutory deadlines (cf. 4.7 'Correcting the declaration of completeness after generating the producer declaration').

In their dashboard, users can click on the 'Edit' button in the 'Declaration of completeness' tile and view the DoC again by clicking on the 'View' button. By navigating toward the bottom of the summary shown, users will see the 'Reset audit' tile.



Figure 61 – 'Reset audit' tile overview

Clicking on the 'Reset audit' button will display the window below.



Do you war	nt to reset this audit? The status of the declaration
of complete	eness is reset accordingly. New documents can

Figure 62 – Reset audit warning message

By clicking on the 'Reset audit' button, the DoC status will be reset and all of the documents uploaded in LUCID during the process will be removed. The process can then be restarted.

The status of the reset DoC will be displayed as 'Being corrected'. The process from that point onward is described in chapter 7.3 'Uploading the producer declaration' and can be worked through again.

Declaration	aration o aration of dit"). You o (reference claration of auditor ic register	f completeness > # of completeness (DOC) can amend existing de e year). It is not possi of completeness filec s. The Zentrale Stelle on the Zentrale Stelle	Declara Declaration ble to filid d in acco is under s webs	tion of completeness according to VerpackG enecss according to (VerpackG) ag to VerpackG (from reference year 2019) here (click ns of completeness (click on "correct"). A declaration o one during the current calendar year. The informa rdance with § 11 (1) VerpackG. You can use LUCID to statutory obligation to publish a list of producers w ite. Publication starts on the 16 May for the previous	O Ver c on "add decl n of completer tion must be r find registere ho have filed a s reference ye	PackG aration"), or continue one you have ness can only ever be submitted for reviewed and verified by a registered ad auditors in the Zentrale Stelle's a declaration of completeness; this ar. The list is updated on a regular Add declaration
Reference year	٣	Status	Ŧ	DoC reason	۲	Actions
2019		Being corrected		Other/optional		Edit
2019		Being audited		Duty triggered by exceeding thresholds		View Correct
						New Correct

Figure 63 – Overview of declarations of completeness after resetting the audit

#### 8 Document requirements

Documents will only be deemed filed if they can be opened by the ZSVR and their content can be displayed in a readable manner. The following requirements should be taken into account:

#### Document requirements to ensure machine readability

All of the filed documents must be machine readable using computer software. In this context, machine readability means that the computer can recognise the text contained in a picture and make it available for downstream processing. Documents that have been created directly using word processing software are machine readable per se. Documents that producers initially had on paper or only, as a scan of a printout, must be processed using so-called Optical Character Recognition (OCR) software to become machine readable. To make this possible, the following requirements



must be taken into account for documents that were generated by producers using word processing software and then submitted as an electronic document.

- Use of a 'standard' font type known in common Windows/Mac/Linux operating systems, such as Arial, Calibri, Times New Roman, Helvetica (list is not exhaustive).
- No use of so-called 'typewriter' font types, such as Courier (this means font types that look like earlier typewriters).
- Use of dark writing (preferably black) on a light background (preferably white).
- No colourful (or grayscale) backgrounds or graphics; if watermarks are used, the text should be clearly distinguishable (cf. examples 2 and 3).
- The font size in any part of the document (including footnotes) may be no smaller than 8 pt.
- Documents may not be handwritten.
- Documents may not have handwritten mark-ups.
- The minimum resolution for scans is 300 dpi or higher.
- Documents should be scanned or filed without creases, folds and/or seams (cf. example 4); if there are any creases, folds and seams, the document should be flattened before scanning.



Figure 64 – Overview of machine readability



When creating the files, it should be noted that the length of the file name must not exceed 150 characters. Moreover, umlauts or special characters (except '.', '-' and '\_') are not permissible in the file name.

## 9 Publication in the public register

Only once the DoC has been fully filed is the producer included in the public register in the DoC section. That means that all the documents requested for the submission of the DoC have been successfully filed and the auditor has not denied a confirmation pursuant to section 11 (1) VerpackG. If the confirmation was denied, there will be no inclusion in the public register.

The producers who filed a DoC will be published after 16 May for the previous reference year. The data is updated on a regular basis. This also applies for the DoCs that have been filed due to an order by the ZSVR / responsible state authorities or on a voluntary basis. Each publication is subject to further verification of content-related accuracy. No publication will be made for DoCs filed for the period between 2012 and 2017.

## **10** Qualified electronic signature

#### 10.1 General information on the qualified electronic signature (QES)

General information on the qualified electronic signature

The qualified electronic signature (QES) is the equivalent of the traditional signature in the electronic world. It makes it possible to verify the authorship of a declaration in electronic data transfers over the long term. The qualified electronic signature is the legal counterpart to a handwritten signature.

In addition to a computer, laptop or similar device, a qualified certificate on a secure signature card, a chip card reader and corresponding signature software are needed to produce a qualified electronic signature. Alternatively, a remote signature using a mobile device and 2-factor authentication is possible.

The signature card anchored with a qualified certificate can be ordered from a qualified trusted services provider (trust service). The current list of trust services recognised by the EU Commission can be viewed online (https://eidas.ec.europa.eu/efda/tl-browser/#/screen/home). Certificates from these trust services are recognised in the European Economic Area.

Users identify themselves to the trust service and are then registered by the service. Digital signatures relate to a process whereby an additional data set – the so-called signature – is generated for each given digital file. Verification of the digital signature determines whether the signed data have been changed after the signature process. The author of the signature can also be determined during the verification process by reading the certificate. This certificate is secured by a trust service. The use of a password or PIN prevents an unauthorised third party from using the certificate.

### 10.2 Auditing the QES in LUCID

The DoC audit result is confirmed by registered auditors – as was the case under the Verpackungsverordnung when submitting the DoC to the DIHK – and signed with a qualified electronic signature (QES).



The ZSVR uses software that checks the integrity and authenticity of documents with a qualified electronic signature. Only QESs with certificates from trust centres recognised by the EU Commission will be accepted. To sign PDF documents, only the 'PAdES embedded' signature exchange format (PDF signature, \*.pdf) is permitted.

To file the **audit confirmation**, the auditor fills out a form prescribed by the ZSVR in the 'Declaration of completeness audit guidelines' outside of LUCID (<u>https://www.verpackungsregister.org/en/foundation-authority/audit-guidelines/declaration-of-completeness</u>). The document is not sealed by the ZSVR. The auditor saves the document in PDF/A compatible format. They then sign it with a QES in the 'PAdES embedded' signature exchange format, and upload it in LUCID.

The **audit report** does not have to have a QES. If the auditor wishes to sign the audit report with a QES, they have to save the document in a PDFA compatible way and use the 'PAdES embedded' signature exchange format. They then upload the file in LUCID. This QES is not checked.

#### 10.3 Information about signing documents with a QES

- Documents must be signed with a qualified electronic signature. Advanced and simple signatures are not permitted.
- The automatically generated producer declaration bears the seal of the ZSVR and must not be altered. The auditor's signature must be added, to make sure that both signatures are embedded in the file.
- The signature card delivered by the trust service must be explicitly activated after receipt. Signatures from signature cards that have not been activated cannot be verified. If the signature card's validity period has expired, it can no longer be used to sign.
- The use of the 'PADES embedded' signature exchange format is mandatory, and must be activated in the signature software used, as necessary.
- The signature software must be set up in such a way that the generated signature time is not in the future. Signature times in the future cannot be verified.
- The signature or signature software used must be compatible with PDF version 1.4.
- Information stored in the signature is encrypted. the encryption method used for this purpose must comply with current requirements of the eIDAS Regulation.

\*\*\*



## **11 Table of figures**

Figure 1 – LUCID, producer dashboard, overview of all tiles	6
Figure 2 – Selection of the DoC type	6
Figure 3 – DoC tile, overview of DoCs	7
Figure 4 – Setting up a new DoC ('Add declaration')	7
Figure 5 – Fields to be updated when DoC [reference/reason] is 'Requirement from the responsi state authority'	ble 8
Figure 6 – Fields when DoC reason is 'Order from the Stiftung Zentrale Stelle Verpackungsregis'	ter' 8
Figure 8 – Process for entering packaging subject to system participation & sector-specific solution	on
volumes (DoC)	10
Figure 9 – Volumes input form (packaging subject to system participation)	11
Figure 10 – Deduction volumes	12
Figure 11 – Overview of review result of the previous entries	13
Figure 12 – Confirmation dialogue (saving message)	13
Figure 13 – Review result (warnings and messages)	14
Figure 14 – Process for entering sector-specific solution volumes (DoC)	14
Figure 15 – Volumes input screen (sector-specific solution)	15
Figure 16 – Process for entering non-private final consumer volumes (DoC)	16
Figure 17 – Input screen: Packaging: non-private final consumer	17
Figure 18 – Process for DoC submission	18
Figure 19 – Summary, filing and submission of the DoC	19
Figure 20 – Complete DoC filing confirmation dialogue	20
Figure 21 – DoC filing successful dialogue	20
Figure 22 – DoC confirmation e-mail with download link	21
Figure 23 – View DoC	21
Figure 24 – Filing a declaration of completeness (data not yet generated)	22
Figure 25 – Downloading a producer declaration (data generated)	22
Figure 26 – Producer declaration with the ZSVR's QES	23
Figure 27 – Overview of the tiles to file PDF documents	23
Figure 28 – Correcting a DoC	24
Figure 29 – Correct producer declaration warning message	24
Figure 30 – LUCID, dashboard of an appointed third party, all tiles	25
Figure 31 – Appointed third party: declarations of completeness	25
Figure 32 – LUCID DoC, managing declarations of completeness	26
Figure 33 – LUCID DoC, manage requests	26
Figure 34 – LUCID DoC, request details	27
Figure 35 – LUCID DoC, manage requests (updated status)	27
Figure 36 – Manage declaration of completeness, start actions	28
Figure 37 – Manage declaration of completeness, edit actions	28
Figure 38 – Overview of tiles for appointed third party DoCs	29
Figure 39 – Authorised representative's dashboard following login generation	29
Figure 40 – 'Manage producers' tile	30
Figure 41 – Producer dashboard access for authorised representatives	30
Figure 42 – Authorised representative's view of the producer dashboard	31
Figure 43 – DoC options for authorised representatives	31
Figure 44 – DoC options for producers with an active authorisation	32
Figure 45 – DoC filing overview	32
Figure 46 – LUCID dashboard (auditor view)	33



Figure 47 – DoC status overview	33
Figure 48 – Overview of the tiles to submit PDF documents	34
Figure 49 – LUCID dashboard (producer), declaration of completeness	34
Figure 50 – Selection of the DoC type (producer)	35
Figure 51 – Declarations of completeness, edit	35
Figure 52 – Submitting the signed producer declaration	36
Figure 53 – Producer declaration upload	36
Figure 54 – Producer declaration upload (incl. possible error messages)	37
Figure 55 – Notification after successful file upload	37
Figure 56 – Submitting the signed audit confirmation	38
Figure 57 – Submitting the (signed) audit report	38
Figure 58 – Entering the audit result	38
Figure 59 – Confirmation of successful DoC submission	39
Figure 60 – DoC status	40
Figure 61 – 'Reset audit' tile overview	40
Figure 62 – Reset audit warning message	41
Figure 63 – Overview of declarations of completeness after resetting the audit	41
Figure 64 – Overview of machine readability	42